
Planning Board 
Virtual Meeting  

March 8, 2021, 6:30 p.m. 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the Mebane Planning Board’s regular meeting will be held virtually on Monday, 
March 8, 2021, at 6:30 p.m. 

The City of Mebane is taking measures to mitigate the spread of the COVID-19 virus including banning 
physical attendance at public meetings, employing social distancing, and implementing remote 
participation. The following will allow the public to attend the meeting by remotely accessing it on the 
internet. 

For those without internet service, you can listen to the meeting by calling 919-304-9210, password 
158962. 

For people who plan to view the meeting, but not comment or participate, the City is providing a YouTube 
live stream by searching the City of Mebane on YouTube or at the following link: 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCoL1RXdRDMzK98p53TMoqww 

For people who plan or think they may want to address the Planning Board for public comment, see 
options below.  

Option #1-  
• Email comment to avogel@cityofmebane.com.  Written comments must be received by 4:00 pm 

on Monday, March 8th. Written comments will be read aloud by staff 

• Messages must be labeled “Planning Board Public Comment” in the subject line and must contain 
commenter’s name and address. 

Option #2 
• Email avogel@cityofmebane.com by 2:00 pm Monday, March 8th to participate. When email is 

received, an email will be sent with instructions on how to register and speak during the meeting. 

• Messages must be labeled “Planning Board Participation” in the subject line and must contain 
commenter’s name and address in the email. 

• Registered participants will be given an access code to speak at the meeting via Zoom, a remote 
conferencing service 

• Callers will be held in queue and asked to mute their phones or speakers until they are called on 
to speak 

• Speakers will be called in the order in which they are registered.  Should time allow after all 
registered speakers have had a chance to speak, you may use the “raise hand” button on the 
Zoom interface to be recognized and staff will unmute you to give comment. 

• Per authority of NCGS 143-318.17, if a person participating remotely willfully disrupts the 
Planning Board, then upon direction by the Chair, such person may be removed from electronic 
participation, or his or her e-mail may not be read

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCoL1RXdRDMzK98p53TMoqww
mailto:avogel@cityofmebane.com
mailto:avogel@cityofmebane.com


Planning Board 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

March 8, 2021, 6:30 p.m. 

 

1. Call to Order 

2. Approval of February 8, 2021, Meeting Minutes 

3. City Council Actions Update  

4. Request to rezone six parcels totaling +/- 133.9-Acres located on Oakwood Street 
Extension, with frontages on E Washington Street and Mattress Factory Road (PINs 
9825404628, 9825502531, 9825601982, 9825529420, 9825614053, 9825604799), from 
R-20 and M-1 to R-8 (CD) and R-10 (CD) for a Townhouse and Single Family, respectively, 
Residential Cluster Development, by Meritage Homes of the Carolinas 

5. New Business 

 
6. Adjournment 



 

1 
 

Planning Board 
Minutes to the Meeting 

February 8, 2021 
           6:30 p.m. 

The Planning Board meeting was held virtually and livestreamed via YouTube. The video can be accessed 
through the following link: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=bJiSo5Lck2Q 

Members Present Via Zoom: Keith Hoover, Lori Oakley, Kurt Pearson, Vice Chairman Judy Taylor, Gale 
Pettiford, Larry Teague, Kevin Brouwer, and Chairman Edward Tulauskas 

Also Present: Ashley Ownbey, Planner; Audrey Vogel, Planner; Cy Stober, Development Director; Kirk 
Montgomery, IT Director 

1. Call to Order 
At 6:30 p.m. Chairman Edward Tulauskas called the meeting to order. 

2. Approval of Jan 11, 2021 Minutes 
Lori Oakley made a motion to approve the minutes from the January 11, 2021 meeting. Judy Taylor 
seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.  

3. City Council Actions Update 
Cy Stober, Development Director, provided an update on the City Council’s recent action to 
regarding the rezoning request at 6016 West Ten Road by Al Neyer. He also provided an update on 
the Lowes Blvd Corridor plan that was presented to City Council but no action was taken. 

4. Request to rezone the property located at S NC Hwy 119 (GPIN 9814861392) from B-2 to B-2(CD) to 
allow for a multi-tenant shopping center with a drive-through restaurant on +/- 1.54 acres by PT 
Greenland, LLC 
Staff presented an application from PT Greenland, LLC to rezone +/- 1.54 acres from B-2 (General 
Business) to B-2(CD) (General Business, Conditional) district to allow for a 10,800 sf Multi-tenant 
Building (aka “Neighborhood Shopping Center”) complying with all development standards identified 
in the Mebane (UDO 4-7.8.I)  and allowing for four (4) otherwise restricted uses: Laundromat, Coin-
Operated or Card, Restaurant (drive-in or take-out window only), Restaurant (with drive-through), 
and Physical Fitness Center, Training Center. The other 32 prohibited uses would be restricted from 
use on this property. The site qualifies as a small lot for landscaping requirements. As a small lot, the 
UDO requires 5’ minimum and 15’average aggregate buffering along property perimeters with 
properties. The applicant has requested a waiver to reduce the 15’ streetscape to 11 
feet to accommodate the existing sidewalk on 119. The Technical Review Committee (TRC) has 
reviewed the site plan and the applicant has revised the plan to reflect any comments. 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=bJiSo5Lck2Q


 

2 
 

Audrey Vogel provided a brief overview and PowerPoint of the request. 

Chad Huffine, Engineer at the L.E.A.D.S. Group, PA, 505 E Davis Street, Burlington, NC, 27215, 
presented on the behalf of the applicant and answered questions from the Planning Board. Mr. 
Huffine elaborated on the rezoning request and shopping center site plan. 

Kurt Pearson asked about the location of the drive-through components, including windows, and 
ordering kiosks, on the site plan. Chad Huffine noted the locations of two drive through windows on 
the plan. He elaborated on the intent of the northern drive-through window clarifying that an ordering 
menu is not required for the intended use. Mr. Huffine indicated that the tenant to occupy the space 
with the southern drive through window has not yet been identified and a menu/ordering board may 
or may not be required, but the construction plans will include underground wire conduits to allow 
for a menu/ordering board if necessary. He also noted that the design of the site features 11 vehicle 
queuing spaces, which exceeds DOT requirements, for each window, and appropriate striping will be 
provided when necessary. 

Larry Teague asked about the site’s vehicular circulation and any anticipated traffic. Mr. Huffine 
described the counterclockwise entrance and exit pattern on the site. In addition, Mr. Huffine 
indicated that the drive isle at the south east corner of the property was designed as 36 to 44 feet 
wide which is double the typical 2 lane isle parking lot design. 

Lori Oakley asked about the site’s access point on the unnamed driveway, expressing concerns that 
the point on the driveway is the relatively close to the 5th Street / 119 intersection. Chad Huffine 
responded that the driveway is 80-100 feet from 5th Street. He explained the site presents a north to 
south topographic challenge and they designed the site so that the entrance was a far south as 
possible. Ms. Oakley also noted that she would have like to see more accessibility through the site but 
understood that the steep grade and retaining walls pose a challenge.  

Cy Stober responded to Kurt Pearson’s previous comment about menu boards on the site. Mr. Stober 
noted that a menu board is not reflected on the approved plans. He explained that they area allowed 
by right but are not allowed to be positioned to face a public right of way, so in the event that a menu 
board is installed it would not face NC 119 and would require appropriate screening. 

Kurt Pearson asked Chad Huffine if he was able to provide information about the tenant expected to 
occupy the northern space with the drive-through window. Mr. Huffine declined to answer at this 
time.  

Lori Oakley made a motion to approve the B-2(CD) zoning as presented as that the application is 
consistent with the objective goals of the Mebane CLP and that the request is for a property within 
the City’s G-1 Mixed Use (III) Primary Growth Area and satisfies growth management goals 



 

3 
 

1.1 and 1.6. Judy Taylor seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously per a roll call 
vote. Chairman Tulauskas indicated that the request will go before the Mebane City Council on 
Monday, March 1st. 

5. Overview and Discussion of UDO Revisions  
Cy Stober provided a presentation on the City’s effort to update and revise the Mebane Unified 
Development Ordinance. In his presentation, Mr. Stober described the 160D statutory amendments 
as required by state law, as well as separate environmental amendments required to reflect state 
environmental regulations for the Falls Lake Nutrient Management Strategy and Upper Eno Water 
Supply (II) Watershed, and he highlighted the timeline for presenting them to Planning Board and City 
Council. In addition, Cy presented on a second phase of updates to include revisions that are not 
required by NC General Statutes but have been identified by staff as needed to meet the growing 
demand for development in Mebane, including Dimensional Standards, Signs, Open Space & Rec Area, 
Buffers and Landscaping.  
 

6. New Business 
Cy Stober informed the Board about the creation of the Racial Equity Advisory Committee. He 
indicated that information and application materials will be available on the City’s website and has 
been posted on Facebook. 

 
7. Adjournment 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:20 p.m.  
 

 



 P a g e  | 1 

AGENDA ITEM #1 
RZ 21-02 
Conditional Rezoning –  
Oakwood Subdivision 

Presenter 
Audrey Vogel, City Planner 

Applicant 
Meritage Homes of The Carolinas 
3300 Paramount Parkway, STE 120 
Mooresville, NC 27560 

Public Hearing 
Yes   No  

Zoning Map 

 

Property 
Oakwood Street 
Extension 

9825404628, 
9825502531, 
9825601982, 
9825529420, 
9825614053, 
982560479 

Proposed Zoning 
R-8 (CD) & R-10 (CD) 

Current Zoning 
M-1, R-20 

Size 
 +/-133.9 acres 

Surrounding 
Zoning 
R-20, R-8, R-6, M-1, 
B-2, B-3 

Adjacent Land Uses 
Residential, Vacant, 
Manufacturing 

Utilities 
To be extended at 
developer’s expense 

Floodplain 
No 

Watershed 
No 

City Limits 
Partially 



A g e n d a  I t e m  c o n t i n u e d P a g e  | 2 

Summary 
Meritage Homes of the Carolinas is requesting approval to conditionally rezone six (6) properties totaling 
+/- 133.9 acres located on Oakwood St Ext with frontages on E Washington St Ext and Mattress Factory 
Rd from M-1 (Heavy Manufacturing District) and R-20 (Residential District) to R-8(CD) and R-10 (CD) 
(Residential Conditional Zoning Districts) to allow for a residential cluster development of 134 townhomes 
275 single-family homes, 409 dwellings total. The property is located in Orange County, with two parcels 
within City limits and 4 parcels in the ETJ.  Meritage Homes of The Carolinas has the property under 
contract to purchase, contingent upon approval of the conditional rezoning. 

The proposed onsite amenities & dedications include the following: 
• The construction of all internal roads with 5’ sidewalks.
• The construction of a clubhouse, pool, dog park, tot lot and turf play area to exclusively serve

development residents to be maintained by the HOA.
• 5,360’ of a 10’-wide asphalt multiuse path through the development, running from Oakwood Street 

Extension to E. Washington St. This includes the path along E Oakwood St Ext required by the City’s
adopted Bicycle and Pedestrian Transportation Plan.

Requested waivers: 
• Townhome Lots, R-8 Zoning

UDO Requirement Requested Wavier 

30’ front setback 20’ front setback 
85’ minimum lot width minimum lot width of 21’ 
4,350 s.f.  average lot size minimum lot size of 2,600 s.f. 

• Single-Family Detached Lots, R-10 Zoning
UDO Requirement Requested Wavier 

30’ front setback 25’ front setback 
25’ rear setback 20’ rear setback 
10’ side setback, 18’ for corners 5’ side setback, 13’ for corners  
70’ minimum lot width 51’ minimum lot width 
25’ rear setback 20’ rear setback 

• The UDO calculates that the applicant should provide 11.69 acres in public recreation area, valued
at $205,393. The applicant is proposing to dedicate the new multi-use path, 1.23 acres of public
recreation area valued at an estimated construction cost of $643,741.25, as an alternate to the
payment-in-lieu. The multi-use path will be in the City’s right of way and publicly maintained.

A Traffic Impact Analysis was conducted. The improvements include: 
• E Washington Street Site Access:

o exclusive westbound left turn lane with 100' full storage and transitions along E
Washington Street;

o exclusive eastbound right turn lane with 100' full storage and appropriate deceleration
taper along E Washington Street.



A g e n d a  I t e m  c o n t i n u e d   P a g e  | 3 

• Mattress Factory Road Site Access 
o exclusive northbound left turn lane with 100' full storage and transitions; 
o exclusive southbound right turn lane with 100' full storage and appropriate deceleration 

taper along Mattress Factory Road. 
• Additional Offsite Road Improvements 

o NC 119 (Fifth Street) and US 70 (Center Street) intersection-re-stripe southbound 
approach to provide for extended left lane storage extending back to Clay Street. 

o NC 119 (Fifth Street) and East Washington Street intersection-revise pavement markings 
on the westbound approach to provide a combination thru-left turn lane and an exclusive 
right turn lane 

The Technical Review Committee (TRC) has reviewed the site plan five (5) times and the applicant has 
revised the plan to reflect the comments. 

Financial Impact 
The developer will be required to make all of the improvements at his own expense. 

Recommendation 
The Planning staff has reviewed the request for consistency with the City’s adopted plans and finds that it 
is in the public’s interest, recommending approval.  

Suggested Motion 
1. Motion to approve the R-8(CD) and R-10(CD) zoning as presented.  

 
2. Motion to find that the application is consistent with the objectives and goals in the City’s 2017 

Comprehensive Land Development Plan Mebane By Design. The request: 
 
 Provides a multi-use path along its Oakwood Street frontage, as required by the City’s adopted 

Bicycle and Pedestrian Transportation Plan; 
 

 Is for a property within the City’s G-4 Secondary Growth Area and is generally residential in nature 
(Mebane CLP, p.66); 
 

 Provides a greenway connection to a different land use, consistent with Open Space and Natural 
Resource Protection Goal 4.2 (p. 17 & 89); 
 

 Provides a greenway and open space in a developing area, connecting to other locations, consistent 
with Open Space and Natural Resource Protection Goal 4.3 (p. 17, 89, & 90); and  

 
3. Motion to deny the R-8(CD) and R-10(CD) rezoning as presented due to a lack of 

a. Harmony with the surrounding zoning  
OR 



A g e n d a  I t e m  c o n t i n u e d   P a g e  | 4 

b. Consistency with the objectives and goals in the City’s 2017 Comprehensive Land Development 
Plan Mebane By Design or any of the City’s other adopted plans. 

Attachments 
1. Zoning Amendment Application 
2. Zoning Map 
3. Site Plan 
4. Planning Project Report  
5. Preliminary Water and Sewer System Approval Letter 
6. Technical Memorandum – City Engineering Review 
7. Traffic Impact Analysis Executive Summary (full TIA available at this link) 

 

https://cityofmebane.sharefile.com/d-s8f243becdd9944b5b933a9c5c4513521


























































































































































WM

WM

WM

  

    

     








































































































































































































































































































     
































































































































































































 






















































WM

FO
FO

WM

WM

TV

TV

TV

T




































































































































      





















































WM

WM

T

T

  

    








































































































































































































 






















































T

T

T

 































































































































































WM

WM
WM

WM

WM

          

          

  
 

 

 
   
 

 































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































        




















































































  

  


 














































































































































































































































































 






















































WM

FO
FO

WM

WM

TV

TV

TV

T






































































































































































































               



























































































WM

WM

T

T

       

            































































































































































































































































































































































































 


 

























































 






















































T

T

T




 
 



 
  






 






























































































































































 






   

 
























































































































































































WM

FO
FO

WM
WM

T

T

T

WM

WM

TV

TV

TV

T






















































































































































































































      


































































































































 



























































WM

FO
FO

WM

WM

TV

TV

TV

T




































































































































      





















































WM

WM

T

T

   

 











































































































































 







































































































T

T

T


































































































































51347
651.89

DI

51348
651.72
DI

51349
651.78

DI

51350
651.80
DI

51351
654.69
DI

51352
654.77
DI

51353
654.75

DI

53428
658.77
STMH














































































































 




































 

PAGE 1 

 
PLANNING PROJECT REPORT 
DATE  02/26/2021 

PROJECT NUMBER  RZ 21‐02 

PROJECT NAME  Oakwood Subdivision 

APPLICANT 

Meritage Homes of The Carolinas 

3300 Paramount Parkway, STE 120 

Mooresville, NC 27560 

 

CONTENTS 
PROJECT NAME & APPLICANT .............................................................................................. PAGE 1 

ZONING REPORT ................................................................................................................... PAGE 2 

LAND USE REPORT ................................................................................................................ PAGE 5 

UTILITIES REPORT ................................................................................................................. PAGE 8 

STAFF ZONING REQUEST RECOMMENDATION ................................................................. .PAGE 12



 

PAGE 2 

 
ZONING REPORT 

EXISTING ZONE M-1 (Heavy Manufacturing District) and R-20 (Residential District) 
REQUESTED ACTION R-8(CD) and R-10 (CD) (Residential Conditional Zoning Districts) 
CONDITIONAL ZONE? YES   NO 
CURRENT LAND USE Vacant Industrial, Vacant Single-Family Residential 
PARCEL SIZE  +/- 133.9 acres 

PROPERTY OWNERS 

Ticon Properties LLC 
5836 Fayetteville Rd #201 
Durham, NC 27713 
PINs 9825404628 & 9825502531 
 
Linda Davis & Lisa Borders  
504 N First St 
Mebane, NC 2730 
PIN 9825601982, 9825614053, 
9825604799 

Katherine S. Baily Heirs  
C/O Carol Bailey Yancey 
29 Ridge Rd 
Jackson Springs, NC 27181 
PIN 9825529420 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

The applicant proposes to rezone six (6) properties totaling +/- 133.9 acres from M-1 
(Heavy Manufacturing District) and R-20 (Residential District) to R-8(CD) and R-10 
(CD) (Residential Conditional Zoning Districts) to allow for a residential cluster 
development of 134 townhomes and 275 single-family homes, 409 dwelling units 
total. 

AREA ZONING & DISTRICTS 

The adjacent properties to the east and north west of the site are zoned R-20 
(Residential District). The properties to the north of the western-most parcel are 
zoned R-8 (Residential District), including the Cedar Hill Apartments. The property 
directly south of western most parcel is zoned R-6 (Residential District) for the 
Townes at Oakwood Square townhome development under construction. The site is 
also adjacent to several properties zoned M-1 (Heavy Manufacturing District) to the 
southeast and east, across Mattress Factory Road. The properties across the railroad 
tracks north of the site are zoned B-3 and B-1. 

SITE HISTORY 

A special use permit for a +/- 80.51-acre portion of the site was approved for the 
Oakwood Business Center development in 2008. The vested rights have expired. 
There is a driveway at the E Oakwood St Ext frontage that was constructed to serve 
the approved Oakwood Business Center. Much of the site is vacant land including 
cleared space and wooded sections with mature trees. Wetlands and a creek are 
present. An overhead utilities easement crosses through the southern portion of the 
site is owned and used by Duke Energy for high-voltage transmission.   

  



 

PAGE 3 

STAFF ANALYSIS 
CITY LIMITS? YES   NO - partially, 2 parcels within City Limits, 4 parcels in ETJ 
PROPOSED USE BY-RIGHT? YES   NO  
SPECIAL USE? YES   NO 
EXISTING UTILITIES? YES   NO 

POTENTIAL IMPACT OF 
PROPOSED ZONE 

The proposed zoning district will support single-family and townhome residential 
uses consistent with the R-6, R-8, and R-20 development surrounding the site. The 
development’s section of single-family detached units is proposed to neighbor the 
adjacent single-family detached residential districts and the section of townhomes is 
proposed to neighbor the adjacent higher density R-6 and R-8 residential districts. 
However, the residential development will be bordered by industrial zones to the 
south and east, most of which remain undeveloped and could present land use 
concerns in the future. 

 
 



 

PAGE 4 



 

PAGE 5 

 
LAND USE REPORT 

EXISTING LAND USE Vacant Industrial, Vacant Single-Family Residential 

PROPOSED LAND USE & 
REQUESTED ACTION 

The applicant proposes to rezone six (6) properties totaling +/- 133.9 acres 
from M-1 (Heavy Manufacturing District) and R-20 (Residential District) to 
R-8(CD) and R-10 (CD) (Residential Conditional Zoning Districts) to allow for 
a residential cluster development of 134 townhomes 275 single-family 
homes, 409 dwellings total. 

PROPOSED ZONING R-8(CD) and R-10 (CD) (Residential, Conditional Zoning Districts) 
PARCEL SIZE +/-133.9 acres 

AREA LAND USE 

Surrounding properties primarily include residential uses, industrial uses 
and vacant land. The properties to the north, east, and west of the site 
include single-family homes and vacant residential land. The Cedar Hill 
Apartments are northwest of the site. The Townes at Oakwood Square 
townhome development under construction abuts the southwest corner of 
the site. The site is also adjacent to several industrial uses and vacant 
industrial land to the southeast and east, across Mattress Factory Road. The 
area across the railroad tracks is primarily commercial. 

ONSITE AMENITIES & DEDICATIONS 

The applicant proposes to provide +/-5,360’ of a 10’-wide asphalt multiuse 
path through the development, running from Oakwood Street Extension to 
E. Washington St. The applicant is also proposing to provide a private 
clubhouse, swimming pool, dog park, tot lot, and turf play area to 
exclusively serve development residents to be maintained by the HOA. 

WAIVER REQUESTED YES   NO 

DESCRIPTION OF REQUESTED 
WAIVER(S) 

Note: Wetland impacts require federal and state permitting. 
Townhome Lots: 

- A 20’ front setback rather than the required 30’ 
- A minimum lot width of 21’ rather than the required 85’ 
- A minimum lot size of 2,600 s.f.  

Single-Family, Detached Lots: 
- A 25’ front setback rather than the required 30’ 
- A 5’ side setback rather than the required 10’ 
- A 20’ rear setback rather than the required 25’ 
- A minimum lot width of 51’ rather than the required 70’ 

The applicant’s public recreation area dedication totals 11.69 ac valued at 
$205,393. The applicant is proposing to dedicate the new multi-use path, 
1.23 acres of public recreation area valued at an estimated construction cost 
of $643,741.25, as an alternate to the payment-in-lieu for this dedication. 
The multi-use path will be in the public right of way and be maintained by 
the City.  

 
 
 
 



 

PAGE 6 

 
 

CONSISTENCY WITH MEBANE BY DESIGN STRATEGY 
LAND USE GROWTH STRATEGY 
DESIGNATION(S) 

G-4 Secondary Growth Area 
Conservation Area 

MEBANE BY DESIGN GOALS & 
OBJECTIVES SUPPORTED 

OPEN SPACE AND NATURAL RESOURCE PROTECTION 4.2 
Provide greenways, parks and open space connectivity between different 
land uses and across major transportation corridors, thereby advancing 
safety and health. 

 OPEN SPACE AND NATURAL RESOURCE PROTECTION 4.3 
Support park, greenway, and open space expansion in developed and 
developing areas, prioritizing connectivity between each location. 

MEBANE BY DESIGN GOALS & 
OBJECTIVES NOT SUPPORTED 

 



 

PAGE 7 

 



 

PAGE 8 

UTILITIES REPORT 
AVAILABLE UTILITIES YES   NO 

PROPOSED UTILITY NEEDS 

Per the memorandum from Franz Holt of AWCK, the project has an 
estimated domestic water and sewer demand at approximately 
61,350 gallons per day to support the development’s 134 
townhomes and 275 single-family homes. It features 8” and 12’ 
water lines that will be served from the City’s 12-inch water mains 
along Oakwood Street Extension, E. Washington Street and Mattress 
Factory Road. Sewer service is available on-site from previous 
extension.  Sewer service is available on-site from previous 
extension. However, the L. J. Rogers sewer pump station (PS) serving 
this area is limited in permitted capacity requiring a new 12-inch 
sewer outfall extension from Tanger Outlets. In addition, the 
proposed 12-inch sewer outfall extension provides the City with the 
opportunity to eliminate L. J. Rogers PS and is requested to be 
considered for oversizing reimbursement per City policy. 

UTILITIES PROVIDED BY 
APPLICANT Applicant has pledged to provide all on-site utilities.  

MUNICIPAL CAPACITY TO 
ABSORB PROJECT  

The City has adequate water & sewer supply to meet the domestic 
and fire flow demands of the project. While the City currently has 
available sewer capacity at the WRRF in excess of 0.75 million 
gallons per day (MGD) this project and other previously approved 
projects will reduce that capacity as they develop over time. To 
offset this reduction in capacity the City is actively pursuing 
additional capacity at the WRRF through a phased 0.5 MGD plant 
expansion (initial construction planned to start this summer).    

CONSISTENCY WITH MEBANE 
LONG RANGE UTILITY PLAN? 

YES   NO 

ADEQUATE STORMWATER 
CONTROL? 

YES   NO 

INNOVATIVE STORMWATER 
MANAGEMENT? 

YES   NO 

TRANSPORTATION NETWORK STATUS 

CURRENT CONDITIONS 

The proposed development includes three driveway connections. 
Connections are proposed at E Oakwood St Ext, E Washington St Ext, 
and Mattress Factory Road, all of which are state maintained 
secondary routes.  
 
Oakwood Street has average daily traffic volume of 2,600 trips and a 
Level of Service (LOS) C. It is projected to have an LOS D in 2040. 



 

PAGE 9 

East Washington Street Extension is a major east west corridor 
within the city with an average with an average daily traffic volume 
of 2,700 trips. It has a current LOS C and is projected to have a LOS D 
in 2040.It is estimated that approximately 14,000 vehicles per day 
will utilize the of Mattress Factory Road nearest to the site and in 
2040 it is currently projected to have LOS E. All forecasted 
conditions are deemed unsatisfactory performance by NCDOT.  
 
Mattress Factory Road has Safety Score of 77.8 from NCDOT, with 
seven (7) incidents 2015 – 2019, none fatal/serious. The intersection 
of Mattress Factory Road and East Washington Street has had 10 
crashes 2015 – 2019. No safety data is available for the East 
Washington or Oakwood Streets. No incidents have been reported 
on South 11th Street.  

  



 

PAGE 10 

TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 
REQUIRED? 

YES   NO 

DESCRIPTION OR 
RECOMMENDED 
IMPROVEMENTS 

E Washington Street Site Access: 
• exclusive westbound left turn lane with 100' full storage and 

transitions along E Washington Street 
• exclusive eastbound right turn lane with 100' full storage 

and appropriate deceleration taper along E Washington 
Street. 

Mattress Factory Road Site Access 
• exclusive northbound left turn lane with 100' full storage and 

transitions 
• exclusive southbound right turn lane with 100' full storage 

and appropriate deceleration taper along Mattress Factory 
Road. 

Additional Offsite Road Improvements 
• NC 119 (Fifth Street) and US 70 (Center Street) intersection-

re-stripe southbound approach to provide for extended left 
lane storage extending back to Clay Street. 

• NC 119 (Fifth Street) and East Washington Street 
intersection-revise pavement markings on the westbound 
approach to provide a combination thru-left turn lane and an 
exclusive right turn lane 

CONSISTENCY WITH THE 
MEBANE BICYCLE AND 
PEDESTRIAN TRANSPORTATION 
PLAN? 

YES   NO 

MULTIMODAL IMPROVEMENTS 
PROVIDED BY APPLICANT? 

YES   NO 

DESCRIPTION OF MULTIMODAL 
IMPROVEMENTS 

The applicant proposes to provide +/-5,360’ of a 10’-wide asphalt 
multiuse path through the development, running from Oakwood 
Street Extension to E. Washington St. Consistent with the City’s 
adopted plans, a multiuse path will also be provided along the 
frontage of Oakwood Street to connect to that provided by the 
Townes at Oakwood Square. 

 
  



 

PAGE 11 



 

PAGE 12 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
STAFF ZONING 
RECOMMENDATION  

 APPROVE    DISAPPROVE 

RATIONALE 

The proposed development “Oakwood Subdivision” is consistent 
with the guidance provided within Mebane By Design, the Mebane 
Comprehensive Land Development Plan. Specifically, it serves 
Goals 4.2 and 4.3. The proposed project is in harmony with the 
single-family and multifamily residential uses of some of its nearby 
properties.  

 



 
  March 3, 2021 
  Tim Smith, PE with Summit Design and Engineering Services 
  320 Executive Court 
 Hillsborough, NC 27268 

 

Subject: Oakwood Street Subdivision – Water and Sewer System 
 

In regards to the subject Preliminary Subdivision Plans and in accordance with paragraph 7-4.3 A.3.a. in the UDO, this letter is 
provided to indicate that I have reviewed the preliminary water and sewer system layout and find it acceptable and meets City 
standards based on the following: 

 

1) Water system – The project is to be served with from the City’s 12-inch water mains along Oakwood Street Extension, E. 
Washington Street and Mattress Factory Road. Internal to the project site is an existing 12-inch water line stub in the 
existing paved section connecting to Oakwood Street Extension.  It is proposed to be extended through the development 
creating a 12-inch looped system. In addition, proposed 8-inch water lines internal to the remaining street network will be 
stubbed to undeveloped adjacent property to the north and to the Townes at Oakwood Square development at the 
southern adjacent property line.  When designed and installed to City and State standards and requirements these lines 
will become a part of the City’s water distribution system.   
 
The City has adequate water capacity available to meet the domestic demand at approximately 61,350 gallons per day and 
fire flow requirements. 
 

2) Sanitary Sewer system – The project is to be served from connections to an existing 8-inch sewer outfall that runs through 
the property and is served by the L. J. Rogers sewer pump station (PS) which has limited capacity due to permitting 
restrictions.  To resolve these limitations, a 12-inch sewer outfall is proposed to be extended from Tanger Outlets and 
connecting to the existing 8-inch sewer outfall before it enters L. J. Rogers PS also allowing for its future abandonment.  
Internal to the project site are proposed 8-inch sewer lines which will be extended to adjacent undeveloped property to 
the north.  When designed and installed to City and State standards and requirements these lines will become a part of 
the City’s sanitary sewer collection system.  
 
The permitted sewer use is anticipated at 120,160 gallons per day (134 3-bedroom townhomes at 240 gallons per day and 
275 4-bedoom homes at 320 gallons per day) at build out.  Actual flow is typically less than permitted flow based on a 
historical water usage of 150 gpd per home which would make the expected sewer flow when tributary 61,350 gallons per 
day.  While the City currently has available sewer capacity at the WRRF in excess of 0.75 million gallons per day (MGD) this 
project and other previously approved projects will reduce that capacity as they develop over time. To offset this reduction 
in capacity the City is actively pursuing additional capacity at the WRRF through a phased 0.5 MGD plant expansion (initial 
construction planned to start this summer).  The City also has through its agreement with the City of Graham an additional 
0.75 MGD in available sewer capacity for the possible reroute of sewer flow if and when needed.  Lastly the City is actively 
smoke testing and flow monitoring portions of the collection system that are experiencing inflow/infiltration (I/I) in efforts 
to plan targeted future projects to regain lost sewer capacity. 
 

If there are any questions, please let me know. 
Sincerely, 

 
 

  Franz K. Holt, P.E. City Engineer  
  CC:    Audrey Vogel, Planner, Cy Stober, Development Director, and Kyle Smith, Utilities Director 

CITY OF MEBANE 106 East Washington Street | Mebane, NC 27302  919 563 5901  fholt@cityofmebane.com 

W W W . C I T Y O F M E B A N E . C O M 

mailto:fholt@cityofmebane.com
http://www/


CITY OF MEBANE 106 East Washington Street | Mebane, NC 27302 (919) 563 5901 fholt@cityofmebane.com 

  W  W  W . C I T Y O F M E B A N E . C O M  

 

 

 

Technical Memorandum 

 
Date:      March 3, 2021 
To:    Audrey Vogel, City Planner 
From:     Franz K. Holt, P.E. 
Subject:  Oakwood Street Subdivision – City Engineering review 

 
The preliminary plans for Oakwood Street Subdivision dated February 16th, 2021 and prepared by Tim Smith 
with Summit Design and Engineering Services in Hillsborough, NC, have been reviewed by the Engineering 
Department as a part of the TRC.  Our technical review comments are as follows: 

 
A. General 

 
The Oakwood Street Subdivision is a 409 unit phased residential development proposed to include 
134 townhomes (attached) and 275 single family homes (non-attached) on 134-acres and located 
between Oakwood Street Extension, E. Washington Street and Mattress Factory Road. 

 
Stormwater management controls will be required for this project as planned built upon area 
exceeds 24%. 

 
Water service is available at the site at all 4 proposed existing road connection points. An internal 
12-inch water line loop is recommended and requested to be considered for oversizing 
reimbursement per City policy. 
 
Sewer service is available on-site from previous extension.  However, the L. J. Rogers sewer pump 
station (PS) serving this area is limited in permitted capacity requiring a new 12-inch sewer outfall 
extension from Tanger Outlets.  In addition, the proposed 12-inch sewer outfall extension provides 
the City with the opportunity to eliminate L. J. Rogers PS and is requested to be considered for 
oversizing reimbursement per City policy.  

 
Internal streets are considered local and to be constructed to the City standard of 31-ft. b-b roll 
curb and gutter section.  The existing 41’ b-b standard curb and gutter street section is proposed 
to be rebuilt due to the significant amount of proposed driveway and water/sewer service cuts.  A 
proposed 10’ concrete multi-use path is proposed to connect from Oakwood Street Extension to 
E. Washington Street and being located in the road right-of-way.  All internal streets are proposed 
to have 5’ concrete sidewalks on both sides of the road (except where the multi-use path is 
proposed).  The connections to Oakwood Street Extension, E. Washington Street, and Mattress 
Factory Road (all NCDOT roads) will require right turn lanes and left turns.  Street stubs are 
provided to adjacent undeveloped property to the north and a connection is proposed to the 
Townes at Oakwood Square development located at the southern adjacent property line.   

mailto:fholt@cityofmebane.com
http://www.cityofmebane.com/


CITY OF MEBANE 106 East Washington Street | Mebane, NC 27302 (919) 563 5901 fholt@cityofmebane.com 

  W  W  W . C I T Y O F M E B A N E . C O M  

 

 

 
Off-site sewer easements are needed for the proposed 12-inch sewer outfall extension and possible 
easements and right-of-way may be needed for the proposed turn lane improvements on E. 
Washington Street and Mattress Factory Road. 
 
NCDOT driveway permits are required for the proposed roadway connections and turn lane 
improvements.  Three-Party NCDOT encroachment agreements are required for proposed 
pedestrian improvements and water line connections inside NCDOT right-of-way. 

 

B. Water and Sewer System Layout 

 
In regards to the subject Preliminary Subdivision Plans and in accordance with paragraph 7-4.3 
A.3.a. in the UDO, this memo is provided to indicate that I have reviewed the preliminary water and 
sewer system layout and find it acceptable and meets City standards based on the following: 

 
1. Water system – The project is to be served with from the City’s 12-inch water mains along 

Oakwood Street Extension, E. Washington Street and Mattress Factory Road. Internal to the 
project site is an existing 12-inch water line stub in the existing paved section connecting to 
Oakwood Street Extension.  It is proposed to be extended through the development creating a 
12-inch looped system. In addition, proposed 8-inch water lines internal to the remaining street 
network will be stubbed to undeveloped adjacent property to the north and to the Townes at 
Oakwood Square development to the south.  When designed and installed to City and State 
standards and requirements these lines will become a part of the City’s water distribution 
system.   
 
The City has adequate water capacity available to meet the domestic demand at approximately 
61,350 gallons per day and fire flow requirements. 
 

2. Sanitary Sewer system – The project is to be served from connections to an existing 8-inch sewer 
outfall that runs through the property and is served by the L. J. Rogers sewer pump station (PS) 
which has limited capacity due to permitting restrictions.  To resolve these limitations, a 12-inch 
sewer outfall is proposed to be extended from Tanger Outlets and connecting to the existing 8-
inch sewer outfall before it enters L. J. Rogers PS also allowing for its future abandonment.  
Internal to the project site are proposed 8-inch sewer lines which will be extended to adjacent 
undeveloped property to the north.  When designed and installed to City and State standards 
and requirements these lines will become a part of the City’s sanitary sewer collection system.  
 
The permitted sewer use is anticipated at 120,160 gallons per day (134 3-bedroom townhomes 
at 240 gallons per day and 275 4-bedoom homes at 320 gallons per day) at build out.  Actual 
flow is typically less than permitted flow based on a historical water usage of 150 gpd per home 
which would make the expected sewer flow when tributary 61,350 gallons per day.   

mailto:fholt@cityofmebane.com
http://www.cityofmebane.com/


CITY OF MEBANE 106 East Washington Street | Mebane, NC 27302 (919) 563 5901 fholt@cityofmebane.com 

  W  W  W . C I T Y O F M E B A N E . C O M  

 

 

While the City currently has available sewer capacity at the WRRF in excess of 0.75 million 
gallons per day (MGD) this project and other previously approved projects will reduce that 
capacity as they develop over time. To offset this reduction in capacity the City is actively 
pursuing additional capacity at the WRRF through a phased 0.5 MGD plant expansion (initial 
construction planned to start this summer).  The City also has through its agreement with the 
City of Graham an additional 0.75 MGD in available sewer capacity for the possible reroute of 
sewer flow if and when needed.  Lastly the City is actively smoke testing and flow monitoring 
portions of the collection system that are experiencing inflow/infiltration (I/I) in efforts to plan 
targeted future projects to regain lost sewer capacity. 
 

C. Watershed Overlay District and Phase II Stormwater Requirements 
 
1. Watershed Overlay District requirements are provided under Sec. 5.2 of the UDO. 

These requirements in the UDO are for the Back-Creek Watershed, which includes the 
Graham-Mebane Lake. The Oakwood Street subdivision project is tributary to Haw Creek, a 
Class V watershed and the Watershed Overlay District requirements do not apply to this 
project. This type of watershed classification (Class V) does not have density restrictions or 
built upon restrictions as required for the Graham-Mebane Lake watershed. 
 

2. Phase II Stormwater Post Construction Ordinance 
Sec. 5.4 in the UDO provides standards for Storm Water Management and 5.4.F requires 
compliance with the Mebane Post Construction Runoff Ordinance (which is a stand-alone 
ordinance titled the Phase II Stormwater Post Construction Ordinance (SPCO)). The standards 
in the UDO are general standards as the Ordinance itself provides detailed standards. The SPCO 
does apply to this project as it will disturb more than one acre of land and it is estimated that 
the new built upon will be more than 24% of the site.  The project proposes to use several 
previously constructed wet ponds for storm water management which may require additional 
modification.  All wet ponds are required to be fenced Storm Drainage System 

 
D. Storm Drainage System  

 
Sec. 5-4. D. in the UDO provides requirements for storm drainage systems. The preliminary site 
plans include a preliminary piping layout that indicates certain pipe locations, inlets, and discharge 
points. Stormwater flows from these pipes will be transported to stormwater management 
devices before being released. 

 
E. Street Access and TIA 

 
Internal streets are considered local and to be constructed to the City standard of 31-ft. b-b roll 
curb and gutter section.  The existing 41’ b-b standard curb and gutter street section is proposed 
to be rebuilt due to the significant amount of proposed driveway and water/sewer service cuts.  A 
proposed 10’ concrete multi-use path is proposed to connect from Oakwood Street Extension to 

mailto:fholt@cityofmebane.com
http://www.cityofmebane.com/


CITY OF MEBANE 106 East Washington Street | Mebane, NC 27302 (919) 563 5901 fholt@cityofmebane.com 

  W  W  W . C I T Y O F M E B A N E . C O M  

 

 

E. Washington Street and being located in the road right-of-way.  All internal streets are proposed 
to have 5’ concrete sidewalks on both sides of the road (except where the multi-use path is 
proposed).  Street stubs are provided to adjacent undeveloped property to the north and a 
connection is proposed to the Townes at Oakwood Square development located at the southern 
adjacent property line.  
 
 
 
A Traffic Impact Analysis was submitted and reviewed by the City’s Traffic Engineer and NCDOT 
and indicated required improvements which are as follows:  

 
  Oakwood Street Extension – Egress shall consist of an exclusive left turn lane and exclusive right   
  turn lane with appropriate pavement markings. 

 
  East Washington Street - Exclusive westbound left turn lane on East Washington Street with 100’ of 
  full storage and appropriate transitions per NCDOT guideline and an exclusive eastbound right turn 
  lane on East Washington Street with 100’ of full storage and appropriate deceleration taper per    
  NCDOT guidelines. 

 
  Mattress Factory Road - Exclusive northbound left turn lane on Mattress Factory Road with 100’  of 
  full storage and appropriate transitions per NCDOT guidelines and an exclusive southbound right 
  turn lane on Mattress Factory Road with 100’ of full storage and appropriate deceleration taper   
  per NCDOT guidelines. 
 
  NC 119 (Fifth Street) and US 70 (Center Street) Intersection - Restripe the southbound approach to 
  provide for extended left lane storage extending back to Clay Street. 
 
  NC 119 (Fifth Street) and East Washington Street Intersection – Revise pavement markings on the 
  westbound approach to provide a combination thru-left turn lane and an exclusive right turn lane. 

 
F. Construction Plan Submittal 

 
Sec. 7-6.7. A. in the UDO indicates that construction plans for all street facilities, including water 
and sewer facilities, shall be submitted following preliminary plat or site plan approval; therefore, 
construction plans are not required as a part of the site plan review. A utility plan is provided which 
generally shows the proposed water lines, sewer lines, and storm drainage and stormwater 
management devices to indicate that the project is feasible for utility service and providing 
stormwater management. Appendix E which is included in the UDO is a Construction Document 
checklist which is to be provided at such time as construction plans are submitted after Preliminary 
Site Plan approval. Based on city engineering review of the referenced preliminary site plans, it is 
my opinion that said plans are in substantial compliance with the UDO. 

mailto:fholt@cityofmebane.com
http://www.cityofmebane.com/


Traffic Impact Analysis
Oakwood

Mebane, North Carolina

RAMEY KEMP 
& 

ASSOCIATES





 
 

E-1

TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

OAKWOOD 

MEBANE, NORTH CAROLINA 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

1.  Development Overview  

A Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) was conducted for the proposed Oakwood development in 

accordance with the City of Mebane (City) Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) and North 

Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) capacity analysis guidelines. The proposed 

development is to be located south of E Washington Street and west of Mattress Factory Road in 

Mebane, North Carolina. The proposed development is expected to be a maximum of 282 single-

family home development and 138 townhomes, and is estimated to be built out in 2026.  

 

Site access will be provided via one (1) full movement intersection along E Washington Street and 

one (1) full movement intersection along Mattress Factory Road. Site access will also be provided 

via one (1) existing intersection at Oakwood Street and Enterprise Lane. It should be noted that 

site access will also be provided via interconnectivity to the future Townes at Oakwood Square 

residential development and through a connection to Oakdale Avenue.  

 

Based on the site plans for the proposed Oakwood development and future Townes at Oakwood 

Square development, a similar number of Oakwood site related trips may be expected to utilize the 

future interconnectivity through Townes at Oakwood Square as Townes at Oakwood Square 

related trips may be expected to utilize the proposed Oakwood development. To provide 

conservative results at the other site driveways, no site-related trips were assumed entering or 

exiting via the Townes at Oakwood Square driveways along Oakwood Street Extension. Oakdale 

Avenue is currently a gravel roadway and was not included in the study area based on scoping; 

therefore, it was assumed that minimal site traffic would utilize this driveway. To provide 

conservative results at the other site driveways, no site-related trips were assumed entering or 

exiting Oakdale Avenue.  

 



Traffic Impact Analysis                                  Oakwood – Mebane, North Carolina 

  
 

E-2

2.  Existing Traffic Conditions 

The study area for the TIA was determined through coordination with the City and NCDOT and 

consists of the following existing intersections:  

 Mattress Factory and E Washington Street (unsignalized) 

 Oakwood Street Extension and Mattress Factory (unsignalized) 

 5th Street and E Washington Street (unsignalized) 

 5th Street and Center Street (signalized) 

 Oakwood Street Extension and Arrowhead Boulevard (unsignalized) 

 Arrowhead Boulevard / Cameron Lane and Mebane Oaks Road (signalized) 

 11th Street and Oakwood Street (unsignalized) 

 11th Street and Washington Street (unsignalized)  

 Oakwood Street and 8th Street (unsignalized) 

 Railroad Crossing and Center Street (unsignalized) 

 Railroad Crossing East of Mattress Factory Road and E Washington (unsignalized) 

 Buckhorn Road and Industrial Drive (unsignalized) 

 Mattress Factory Road and Industrial Drive (unsignalized) 

 

Traffic volumes for the above study intersections were determined based on traffic counts 

conducted at the study intersections listed above, in May of 2019 by RKA, during a typical 

weekday AM (7:00 AM – 9:00 AM) and PM (4:00 PM – 6:00 PM) peak periods. Traffic volumes 

were balanced between study intersections, where appropriate. 

 

3.  Site Trip Generation 

The proposed development is assumed to consist of a maximum of 282 single-family homes and 

138 townhomes.  Average weekday daily, AM peak hour, and PM peak hour trips for the proposed 

development were estimated using methodology contained within the ITE Trip Generation 

Manual, 10th Edition.  Table E-1, on the following page, provides a summary of the trip generation 

potential for the site.  

 



Traffic Impact Analysis                                  Oakwood – Mebane, North Carolina 

  
 

E-3

Table E-1: Site Trip Generation  

 

4.  Future Traffic Conditions 

Through coordination with the City and NCDOT, it was determined that an annual growth rate of 

1% would be used to generate projected (2026) weekday AM and PM peak hour traffic volumes. 

The following adjacent developments were identified to be considered under future conditions: 

 Mebane Town Center 

 Townes at Oakwood Square 

 

It should be noted that Project Titanium, an expansion to an existing industrial site located along 

Industrial Drive to the west of Buckhorn Road, was approved after the initial MOU submittal. The 

approved expansion, anticipated to be completed in 2021, is expected to add approximately 

203,400 sq. ft. of manufacturing land use to the existing 345,225 sq. ft. industrial site. The shifts 

for the industrial portion of the existing site occur from 7:00AM – 3:00PM and from 3:00PM – 

11:00PM and are expected to continue as such with the expansion. Since the AM shift starts at 

7:00 AM, the peak trips for Project Titanium would be expected to occur prior to the weekday AM 

peak hour analyzed for the Oakwood residential development (7:00 – 9:00 AM). Similarly, the 

PM shift starts at 3:00 PM; therefore, the peak trips for Project Titanium would be expected to 

occur prior to the weekday PM peak hour analyzed for the Oakwood residential development 

(4:00 – 6:00 PM). Based on coordination with the City and NCDOT, the initial MOU was deemed 

to still be an accurate estimation of background growth and that Project Titanium trips that would 

be expected to occur during the weekday peak hours for the Oakwood development would be 

expected to be captured in the background growth rate. 

LAND USE 
(ITE Code) 

INTENSITY 
DAILY 
TRIPS 
(VPD) 

WEEKDAY AM 
PEAK HOUR 

(VPH) 

WEEKDAY PM 
PEAK HOUR 

(VPH) 

Enter Exit Enter Exit 

Single-Family Detached Housing 
(210) 

282 dwellings 2,700 51 154 173 102 

Townhomes 
(220) 

138 dwellings 1,000 15 50 50 29 

Total 420 dwellings 3,700 66 204 223 131 



Traffic Impact Analysis                                  Oakwood – Mebane, North Carolina 

  
 

E-4

The study analyzes traffic conditions during the weekday AM and PM peak hours for the 

following scenarios: 

 Existing (2019) Traffic Conditions 

 Background (2026) Traffic Conditions 

 Combined (2026) Traffic Conditions 

 

5.  Capacity Analysis Summary 

The analysis considered weekday AM and PM peak hour traffic for existing (2019), background 

(2026), and combined (2026) conditions. Refer to Section 7 of the report for the capacity analysis 

summary performed at each study intersection. 

 

6.  Recommendations 

Based on the findings of this study, specific geometric and traffic control improvements have been 

identified at study intersections. The improvements are summarized below and are illustrated in 

Figure E-1.  

 

Recommended Improvements by Developer 

5th Street and Center Street 

 Restripe the existing exclusive southbound left-turn lane to have full width storage 

back to Clay Street. 

 

5th Street and E Washington Street 

 Restripe the existing westbound shared through / right-turn lane as an exclusive 

right-turn lane. 

 Restripe the existing westbound exclusive left-turn lane as a shared left-turn / 

through lane. 

 

Oakwood Street Extension and Enterprise Lane / Site Drive 1 

 Provide site access via a full movement intersection. The site drive currently exists 

with one ingress lane and one egress lane. 

 Provide stop control for Site Drive 1. 



Traffic Impact Analysis                                  Oakwood – Mebane, North Carolina 

  
 

E-5

E Washington Street and Site Drive 2 

 Provide site access via a full movement intersection with one ingress lane and one 

egress lane.  

 Provide stop control for Site Drive 2. 

 

Mattress Factory Road and Site Drive 3 

 Provide site access via a full movement intersection with one ingress lane and one 

egress lane.  

 Provide stop control for Site Drive 3. 



N

S
it

e
D

ri
ve

 2
 

Site
Drive 3 

Site
Drive 1 

Center
Street 

E Washington
Street 

Oakwood
Street 

11
th

S
tr

ee
t 

O
ak

w
oo

d
S

tr
ee

t E
xt

en
si

on
 

Oakwood
Street Extension 

M
at

tr
es

s 
F

ac
to

ry
R

oa
d 

5t
h

S
tr

ee
t 

Arrowhead
Boulevard

M
eb

an
e 

O
ak

s 
R

ao
d

Cameron
Lane

8t
h

S
tr

ee
t 

B
uc

kh
or

n
R

oa
d

Industrial
Drive

US 70
 

SITEEnterprise
Lane 

LEGEND

Unsignalized Intersection

Existing Lane

X' Storage (In Feet)

Improvement by Developer

175'

125'

75'

R
E

S
T

R
IP

E
F

U
L

L

125' (RESTRIPE)

T
W

LT
L

32
5'

200'

225'

Full

400'
350'

TWLTL

10
0'

F
ul

l

TWLTL

12
5'

35
0'

22
5'

FULL (RESTRIPE)

F
U

L
L

F
U

L
L

25'
75

'

10
0'

Signalized Intersection

 

Recommended Lane 
Configurations 

Figure E-1

E-6

Scale: Not to Scale

Oakwood 
Mebane, NC


	01 March 2021 Planning Board participation guidelines
	02 March 2021 Planning Board agenda
	03 Feb 8 2021 Meeting Minutes
	04 Oakwood Rezoning
	0 Summary Sheet - Conditional Rezoning - Oakwood
	Presenter
	Applicant
	Public Hearing
	Property
	Zoning Map
	Current Zoning
	Size
	Surrounding Zoning
	Utilities
	Floodplain
	Watershed
	City Limits
	Summary
	Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Suggested Motion
	Attachments

	01 2021-02-26 Signed Rezoning App
	02 Zoning Map
	03 Oakwood Plan Set
	04 Planning Project Report - Oakwood
	Project name & applicant Page 1
	Zoning Report Page 3
	Land Use Report page 6
	Utilities Report page 9
	Staff ZONING REQUEST Recommendation .page 1
	ZONING REPORT
	LAND USE REPORT
	UTILITIES REPORT
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION

	05 Oakwood Street Subdivision -City Engineer's letter of approval for preliminary water and sewer
	06 Technical Memorandum for Oakwood Street Subdivision
	07 TIA SUMMARY- Oakwood Mebane




